
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

May 7, 2014 6
Payroll

April 13-26, 2014 10
April 27-May10, 2014 13

Warrants
Accounts Payable 16

Resolution Approving Agreement Between the City of Kerman
and the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Serving
Fresno County

Staff Report - EDC Agreement 2014 25
Approval of Audit Engagement Letter with Bryant L. Jolley for
the Fiscal Year 2013/14

Staff Report - Audit Engagement Letter 31
Monthly Investment Report for Month Ending April 30, 2014

Report 37
Letter Requesting Support from Kerman Heat Softball
Association

Letter of Support - Kerman Heat Softball Association 40
Request for Letter of Support of AB 1693 (Perea) Reliable Tele-
Co Service for Rural Communities

AB 1693 Fact Sheet 41
Request for Letter of Support of AB 1717 (Perea) Funding Local
Emergency Services

AB 1717 Fact Sheet 43
Request for Letter of Support of AB 2672 (Perea) Increasing
Access to Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged
Communities

AB 2672 Fact Sheet 46
City of Fresno Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan

Staff Report - Measure C Amendment Request 48

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 21, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Introduction and Swearing-In of New Reserve Officer Matt Lopez (JKB) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: May 7, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 
April 13, 2014 - April 26, 2014 Payroll Report: $121,258.74; Overtime: $2,275.73; 
Standby & FTO: $1,059.60: Comp Time Earned: 3.0 
 
April 27, 2014 - May 10, 2014 Payroll Report: $124,015.37; Overtime: $3,077.48; 
Standby & FTO: $1,129.34: Comp Time Earned: 18.0 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Payroll/Overtime Reports - April 13-26, 2014/April 27-May 10, 2014 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 
Nos. 39150-39225; $99,385.48; Electronic Funds Transfer: $104,114.81 
Excepting: Kerwest Newspaper: #39193 - $503.00 
 Valley Food Center: #39214 - $188.02 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement Between the City of Kerman and the 
Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Serving Fresno County (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving agreement between the City 
of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) serving Fresno County 
and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - EDC Agreement 2014 
 
 
 

3



E. SUBJECT: Approval of Audit Engagement Letter with Bryant L. Jolley for the Fiscal Year 
2013/14 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve the audit engagement letter with Bryant L. Jolley 
for the FY 2013/14 audit and authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the city. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Audit Engagement Letter 
 

F. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report for Month Ending April 30, 2014 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Letter Requesting Support from Kerman Heat Softball Association (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider support of Kerman Heat Softball Association and 
direct staff according. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Letter of Support - Kerman Heat Softball Association 
 

B. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 1693 (Perea) Reliable Tele-Co Service for 
Rural Communities (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 1693 Reliable Tele-Co 
Service for Rural Communities 
 

ATTACHMENTS: AB 1693 Fact Sheet 
 

C. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 1717 (Perea) Funding Local Emergency 
Services (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 1717 Funding for Local 
Emergency Services. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: AB 1717 Fact Sheet  
 

D. SUBJECT: Request for Letter of Support of AB 2672 (Perea) Increasing Access to 
Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged Communities (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider a letter of support for AB 2672 Increasing Access 
to Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged Communities. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: AB 2672 Fact Sheet 
 

4



E. SUBJECT: City of Fresno Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council to provide input and direction to Mayor Yep regarding the 
City of Fresno’s request to amend the Measure C Expenditure Plan to provide additional 
funding for street maintenance projects. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Measure C Amendment Request 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Update on Recycling Promotions (PG) 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency 
Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee organization: City of 
Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman Public Safety Employees 
Association. 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 7, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 
 
Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City 
Attorney Logoluso, Community Services Director, Chief of Police, Public Works 
Director, City Engineer 

 
 
 
Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:33 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
DW 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 
ITEMS 4. A AND 4.B MOVED TO AFTER CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

Approved RD/BN 
to move items 4 A 
& B up on agenda  
(4-0-1) DW 

1. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 
4. A  SUBJECT: Request for Resolution by Assembly Member Henry T. Perea 

Affirming Support for Assembly Bill (AB) 2686 (Perea), the Clean, Safe, and 
Reliable Water Supply Act of 2014 and the Importance of Above-Ground 
Water Storage, Delta Restoration and Safe Drinking Water (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider adopting resolution in support of AB 
2686 the Clean, Safe, and Reliable Water Supply Act of 2014. 

 
4. B  SUBJECT: Update on Solar Project Wastewater Treatment Plant (KM)  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Representatives from Borrego Solar will provide a brief 
presentation on the status of the solar project at the wastewater treatment 
plant. This item is informational only. 

 

DW arrived at 6:44 
p.m. 
 
 
Approved RD/NF 
(3-0-2) DW/BN 
abstained 
requested 
additional 
information 
 
Res 14-22 
 
 
 
 
Presented 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

6



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 

Approved NF/RD 
(5-0-0)  except 
39076/39134 
39096 
 

 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: March 30 - April 12, 2014 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 

 

 

 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

Nos. 38992-39149: $324,833.05; EBT: $62,633.37; Excepting: Kerwest 
Newspapers: #39076 - $81.38 and #39134 - $833.34; Valley Food Center: 
#39096 - $18.77 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208)r 

 

Approved NF/RD   
(4-0-1) 39076/39134 
DW 
Approved DW/RD 
39096 (4-0-1)GY 

 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the Wooten Park Lighting Project (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution accepting the Wooten Park 
Lighting Project and authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of 
Completion. 

 
 
 
Res 14-23 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: Adoption of New Development Impact Fee and Increase in 
Existing Development Impact Fees (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council open Public Hearing, receive testimony, close 
Public Hearing and adopt resolutions establishing a new Development 
Impact Fee and increasing existing Development Impact Fees. 

Opened/Closed PH 
Approved NF/DW 
Establish Travel 
Lane Fee  (5-0-0) 
Res 14-24 
 
Approved NF/DW 
Dev Impact Fees 
(5-0-0) 
Res 14-25 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

ITEMS 4. A AND 4.B MOVED TO AFTER CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. SUBJECT: Request for Resolution by Assembly Member Henry T. Perea 
Affirming Support for Assembly Bill (AB) 2686 (LP) 
 

B. SUBJECT: Update on Solar Project Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 
 

C. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement with N.T. Hill, Inc. for the 
Construction of Ten Homes in Kerman Estates, Tract 5478. (LP/TL) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving the agreement 
with N.T. Hill, Inc. for the construction of ten homes in Kerman Estates, 
Tract 5478 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. 

Moved up on 
agenda (see action 
above) 
 
 
Moved up on 
agenda (see action 
above) 
 
 

 
Approved DW/RD 
(5-0-0)  
 
Res 14-26 

7



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement with California Real Estate 
Solutions, LLC for the Construction of Ten Homes in Kerman Estates, Tract 
5478 (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution approving the agreement 
with California Real Estate Solutions, LLC for the construction of ten homes 
in Kerman Estates, Tract 5478 and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
agreement. 

Approved DW/RD 
(5-0-0) 
 
Res 14-27 

E. SUBJECT: Approval to Submit Active Transportation Program Funding 
Applications (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve submission of applications for Active 
Transportation Program Funding to the California Department of 
Transportation. 

Approved by MO 
NF/BN (5-0-0) 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution of Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual 
Assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council adopt resolution of intention to levy and 
collect the annual assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 
and set the date for the required Public Hearing for June 18, 2014. 

Approved DW/NF 
(5-0-0) 
 
Res 14-28 

G. SUBJECT: Selection of Bulbout Alternative at Intersection of Vineland 
Avenue and Kearney Blvd. and Authorization of Re-programming of Federal 
Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Lifeline Funding (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council considers taking the following actions: 
 

1. Select the preferred Bulbout alternative for the intersection of 
Vineland Avenue and Kearney Boulevard; and 

2. Authorize the City Engineer to re-program Federal RSTP Lifeline Funds 
for FYs 16/17 and 17/18. 

Approved NF/DW 
(5-0-0)  
Alternative 2 
 
 

H. SUBJECT: Presentation of Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-15 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational Only 

Presented 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:53 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54956.9(a) Conference with Legal Counsel - 
Pending Litigation: Pacific Mountain Partners 

No discussion 

B. Government Code Section 54956.9 Liability Claim - Claimant: DeWitt; 
Agency Claimed Against: City of Kerman 

No reportable 
action 

8



C. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: City of Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman 
Public Safety Employees Association. 

No reportable 
action 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 10:10 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 10:11 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 
 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 

written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 
 

         Date: May 8, 2014 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 21, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Agreement between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) serving 

Fresno County 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council adopts Resolution approving agreement between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development 
Corporation (EDC) serving Fresno County.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Dating back to 1992, the City of Kerman has contracted with the EDC for economic development related activities. 
The EDC is a nonprofit organization established for the sole purpose of marketing and promoting Fresno County 
and its fifteen cities as a premier location for new and expanding businesses. The EDC is comprised of public and 
private members. Currently, the cities of Fresno, Clovis, Firebaugh, Fowler, Huron, Kingsburg, Mendota, Orange 
Cove, Parlier, Reedley, San Joaquin, Sanger and Selma are members of the EDC. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The current contract between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno 
County is set to expire on June 30, 2014. The contract is on a year-to-year basis. The EDC has requested that the 
City Council renew the agreement beginning July 1, 2014. The agreement will be extended automatically for 
successive 12 month terms unless the City sends the EDC written notice that the City does not want the agreement 
renewed at least 60 days before the end of the fiscal year contract term. The contract amount of $6,000 remains 
unchanged. 
 
Under the terms of the agreement, the EDC will provide marketing and promotion services, assist City staff with 
business expansion, attraction, and retention services as needed, and provide the City with quarterly updates on 
economic development related activities. The EDC was successful last year at securing a Rural Community 
Development Initiative Grant (RCDI) to hold a series of workshops on capacity building at the local level for effective 
economic development. Included in this grant is funding to retain a consultant to update each participating city’s 
website. The update of Kerman’s website is in progress and is expected to be completed in June. 
 

25



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
Agreement with Fresno EDC 
  
The EDC also serves as a one-stop information center for the County and its member cities on demographic data, 
site selection services, and listing of available industrial sites throughout the County of Fresno. The EDC also 
focuses on growing key industry clusters in the County such as clean energy, logistics and distribution, health care, 
and food processing. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The contract amount of $6,000 remains unchanged. Staff has included this amount in the General Fund budget for 
FY 2013-14. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit A - Agreement 
 

 
  

26



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
Agreement with Fresno EDC 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF KERMAN AND 

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (EDC) SERVING FRESNO COUNTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman is committed to the development of a balanced and 
diversified economy to ensure the future well-being of the citizens of Kerman as one of its most important priorities; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman has partnered with the Economic Development Corporation (“EDC”) serving 
Fresno County to market and promote Kerman for economic development and job creation purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman would like to continue its partnership with the EDC for 
economic development related services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to enhance its support of the EDC in order to utilize the unique position the EDC 
maintains within the business community, and to promote economic growth in the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Kerman hereby approves the 
agreement between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County attached 
as Exhibit ‘A’ for an amount of $6,000 payable in one installment.  
 
The above and foregoing resolution was duly introduced, passed and adopted at a meeting by the City Council of the 
City of Kerman at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 21st day of May, 2014, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
   
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 

  ________________________ 
 Gary Yep 
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 
  

27



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
Agreement with Fresno EDC 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 

 
  

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
Agreement with Fresno EDC 
  

 
  

29



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
Agreement with Fresno EDC 
  

 

30



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 21, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Approval of Audit Engagement Letter with Bryant L. Jolley, Certified Public Accountants 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council approve the audit engagement letter with Bryant L. Jolley for the preparation of the FY 2013/14 audit and 
authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the city. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The CPA firm of Bryant L. Jolley has been performing the audits for the City of Kerman since 2008. The previous 
three-year engagement letter expired this year. However, due to staffing changes and in the interest of time staff 
would like to utilize the firm to prepare the FY 2013/14 audit. A request for proposals will be prepared for auditing 
services for the next three years sometime after July. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Due to the staffing changes in the Finance Department staff is requesting a one-year engagement letter with Bryant 
L. Jolley for the Fiscal Year 2013/14 audit. The one-year Audit Engagement Letter for FY 2013/14 is enclosed as 
Attachment ‘A’. Prior to next year’s audit, staff will prepare a request for proposals (RFP) and report back to Council 
with the results along with a recommendation for a multi-year agreement for audit services beginning in Fiscal Year 
2014/15. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The fee for FY 13/14 audit services will not exceed $30,000. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachments:  
 

A. Audit Engagement Letter 
  

31



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
Audit Engagement Letter 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

 

32



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
Audit Engagement Letter 
  

 

33



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
Audit Engagement Letter 
  
 
 
 

34



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
Audit Engagement Letter 
  

35



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
Audit Engagement Letter 
  

 

36



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:

Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00                99,000.00         99,000.00                568.11             

Capmark Bank - Midvale Utah 615-030525-245 5.05% 7/30/08 7/30/13 97,000.00                (97,000.00)       -                    -                           2,429.12          

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 9/14/11 9/16/13 98,000.00                (98,000.00)       -                    -                           474.43             

Bank of China 615-030525-245 1.05% 10/31/11 11/1/13 248,000.00              (248,000.00)     -                    -                           1,305.57          

American Express Bank 615-030525-246 4.75% 12/24/08 12/24/13 95,000.00                (95,000.00)       -                    -                           2,262.43          

Spiritbank - Tulsa Oklahoma 615-030525-245 2.00% 6/17/10 2/18/14 99,000.00                (99,000.00)       -                    -                           1,334.45          

Scotiabank De Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 1.40% 3/11/11 3/11/14 196,000.00              (196,000.00)     -                    -                           2,744.00          

BMW Bank of North America 615-030525-245 1.35% 4/27/11 4/28/14 248,000.00              (248,000.00)     -                    -                           1,678.59          

GE Capital Financial 615-030525-245 1.45% 5/13/11 5/13/14 248,000.00              248,000.00       248,052.08              1,812.78          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00                52,000.00         52,142.48                624.00             

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00                46,000.00         46,126.04                529.00             

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00              200,000.00       200,344.00              2,082.20          

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,624.00              1,750.00          

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00                99,000.00         99,514.80                748.60             

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00                97,000.00         97,584.91                831.28             

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00              100,000.00       100,820.00              843.01             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00                98,000.00         99,170.12                988.05             

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00              147,000.00       149,127.09              1,326.62          

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00                98,000.00         98,375.34                343.94             

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00              150,000.00       152,484.00              3,000.00          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00                50,000.00         50,496.00                750.00             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00                97,000.00         97,615.95                529.12             

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,988.00                352.88             

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00                99,000.00         100,660.23              773.56             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00              100,000.00       102,113.00              2,250.00          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00        95,000.00         94,934.45                128.84             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00                51,000.00         51,927.69                688.50             

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00                48,000.00         48,516.96                672.00             

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,729.00                -                   

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00              149,000.00       148,912.09              522.93             

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00                99,000.00         100,092.96              595.63             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00                47,000.00         48,084.29                940.00             

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,292.00              504.11             

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00              200,000.00       204,100.00              3,700.00          

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00                53,000.00         53,011.66                485.60             

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00              196,000.00       195,539.40              1,469.21          

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00                98,000.00         97,807.92                444.62             

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00                98,000.00         98,936.88                1,666.00          

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00              150,000.00       151,857.00              2,550.00          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00        96,000.00         95,656.32                -                   

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00        99,000.00         98,778.24                -                   

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00              248,000.00       245,763.04              3,100.00          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00              248,000.00       246,397.92              1,854.91          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00                98,000.00         96,549.60                568.13             

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00        97,000.00         97,500.52                831.28             

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00      248,000.00       246,472.32              

Average Rate 1.33%

Subtotal - CD's 4,744,000.00           (146,000.00)     -                         4,598,000.00    4,615,098.30           53,053.50        

37



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                           -                   -                         -                    -                           -                   

Central Valley Comm Bank CD

1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00              200,000.00       200,000.00              2,239.45          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,944,000.00           (146,000.00)     -                         4,798,000.00    4,815,098.30           55,292.95        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                           -                    

(City of Kerman) 149,068.80              149,068.80       149,068.80              
Interest -                    

-                    -                   
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 149,068.80              -                   -                         149,068.80       149,068.80              -                   

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 3,014,204.30           3,014,204.30    
Interest 7/31/13 383.99             383.99              383.99             

8/31/13 305.31             305.31              305.31             
9/30/13 156.88             156.88              156.88             

10/31/13 142.77             142.77              142.77             
11/30/13 206.06             206.06              206.06             
12/31/13 189.38             189.38              189.38             

1/31/14 176.24             176.24              176.24             
2/28/14 265.89             265.89              265.89             
3/31/14 274.54             274.54              274.54             
4/30/14 172.06             172.06              172.06             

Transfers In/(Out) 8/12/13 (280,000.00)     (280,000.00)      
8/16/13 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
8/19/13 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
8/22/13 (800,000.00)     (800,000.00)      
8/28/13 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
9/11/13 (250,000.00)     (250,000.00)      
10/3/13 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)      

10/29/13 500,000.00      500,000.00       
11/1/13 250,000.00      250,000.00       

11/14/13 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
12/13/14 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)      
12/17/13 (225,000.00)     (225,000.00)      

1/31/14 750,000.00      750,000.00       
3/6/14 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)      

3/21/14 (85,000.00)       (85,000.00)        
4/3/14 (225,000.00)     (225,000.00)      

4/30/14 400,000.00      400,000.00       

3,014,204.30           (762,726.88)     -                         2,251,477.42    2,251,477.42           2,273.12          

SBI, CA Money Market Account
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 249,133.52              249,133.52       
Interest 7/31/13 137.53             137.53              137.53             

8/31/13 137.61             137.61              137.61             
9/30/13 133.25             133.25              133.25             

10/25/13 99.13               99.13                99.13               
Transfers In/(Out) -                    -                   

10/25/13 (249,641.04)     (249,641.04)      
-                    

249,133.52              (249,133.52)     -                         (0.00)                 (0.00)                        507.52             

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 3,263,337.82           (1,011,860.40)  -                         2,251,477.42    2,251,477.42           2,780.64          

Subtotal All City Investments 8,007,337.82           (1,157,860.40)  -                         6,849,477.42    6,866,575.72           58,073.59        

38



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of April 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                           -                   -                         -                    -                           -                   

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 16,361.81                16,361.81         
Interest 7/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 

8/30/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
9/30/13 0.67                 0.67                  0.67                 

10/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
11/30/13 0.67                 0.67                  0.67                 
12/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 

1/31/14 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
2/28/14 0.61                 0.61                  0.61                 
3/31/14 7.91                 7.91                  7.91                 
4/30/14 4.61                 4.61                  4.61                 

Transfers In/(Out) 3/3/14 160,000.00      160,000.00       
3/21/14 (45,000.00)       (45,000.00)        

-                    
-                    

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 16,361.81                115,017.92      -                         131,379.73       131,379.73              17.92               

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                           -                   -                         -                    -                           -                   

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 16,361.81                115,017.92      -                         131,379.73       131,379.73              17.92               

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 16,361.81                115,017.92      -                         131,379.73       131,379.73              17.92               

Total Investments 8,372,768.43           (1,042,842.48)  -                         7,329,925.95    7,347,024.25           58,091.51        
Market Value Adjustment 17,098.30                

(1,042,842.48)   
(1,042,842.48)   

(0.00)                 

39



40



Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1693 Fact Sheet          w         April 8, 2014 

 

AB 1693 (Perea) 
Reliable Tele-Co Service for Rural Communities 

(As amended 04/02/14) 
 

 
SUMMARY 

AB 1693 would require the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) to issue a 
decision on the General Rate Case (GRC) of 
a small telephone corporation within 330 
days of the corporation’s GRC application 
filing.  

BACKGROUND 
Small telephone companies, which range in 
size from 400 to 19,000 access lines, are 
rate-regulated by the CPUC. Until recently, 
the CPUC routinely processed small rural 
telephone corporation rate cases within a 
year of filing. However, the latest telephone 
company rate case has experienced 
unreasonable delays, with the CPUC taking 
almost two years to finally decide to stay the 
telephone company’s rate case, potentially 
for many years.  
 
The longer the CPUC takes to decide a rate-
making case, the more costly it becomes for 
the telephone company since new rates do 
not go into effect until they are approved by 
the full Commission, and they are not 
retroactive.  
 
Where a rate case is not resolved within a 
year, unnecessary ambiguity and complexity 
also arise. The revenue and expense 
projections that inform each rate case are 
for the "test year”, which is typically the 
calendar year following the year in which the 
case is adjudicated. If delays extend into the 
test year, prospective ratemaking tasks can 
become clouded. 
 
If a telephone company plans to make 
investments in its infrastructure, but is in 
limbo while awaiting action by the 
commission on its rate case, the company 
has two choices: move forward with the 
capital improvements in the absence of a 
new rate design without any hope of 
recovering the costs incurred while the 

CPUC delayed action on the company’s rate 
case; or, more likely, suspend investment in 
infrastructure improvements, to the 
detriment of the company’s customers, while 
waiting for the CPUC to act on its pending 
rate case. 

THIS BILL 
Specifically, AB 1693 would: 

• Require the CPUC to issue a decision 
on a small telephone corporation GRC 
within 330 days of the corporation’s 
GRC application filing. 

• Allow the rate design proposed by the 
small telephone company to take 
effect on an interim basis if no 
decision is made by the 330th day.  

• Subject the interim rate design to 
true-up if a decision is made within 
540 days. 

• Provide that any rate design adopted 
by the CPUC after 540 days will be 
adopted on a prospective basis only. 

• Allow the requirements of the bill to 
be waived by mutual consent of the 
CPUC and the small telephone 
corporation.  

SUPPORT 
• California’s Independent Telephone 

Companies (CITC) (Sponsor) 
• California Communications 

Association (CalCom) 
• Fresno Chamber of Commerce 

 
OPPOSITION 

• The Utility Reform Network (TURN) 
• Office of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA) 

 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Evan Corder 
Assemblymember Henry T. Perea 
Phone: (916) 319-2031 
Fax: (916) 319-2131 
Evan.corder@asm.ca.gov 

41

mailto:Evan.corder@asm.ca.gov


 

Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1693 Fact Sheet          w         Page 2 
 

 

SAMPLE LETTER 
 

 
 
May 21, 2014 
 
 
The Honorable Henry Perea 
State Capitol, Room 3120 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE: AB 1693 - SUPPORT 
 
Dear Assemblyman Perea: 
 
The [Entity] writes in “SUPPORT” of AB 1693 by Assemblymember Henry T. Perea. This bill would 
require the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to issue a decision on the General Rate Case 
(GRC) of a small telephone corporation within 330 days of the corporation’s GRC application filing. If no 
decision is made by the CPUC by the 330th day, the GRC would be considered approved. 
 
We work hard to strengthen our community, to encourage growth and to identify needs and 
opportunities. 
 
When a small telephone company files a rate case, it is because they are striving to meet the needs of 
their communities. However, when a rate case is not resolved in a timely manner, unnecessary 
ambiguity and complexity arise putting the small telephone company in a difficult situation. If the 
telephone company had planned to make investments in its infrastructure, but is in limbo while awaiting 
action by the commission on its rate case, the company has two choices: move forward with the capital 
improvements in the absence of a new rate design without any hope of recovering the costs incurred 
while the CPUC delayed action on the company’s rate case; or, more likely, suspend investment in 
infrastructure improvements, to the detriment of the company’s customers, while waiting for the CPUC 
to act on its pending rate case. 
 
AB 1693 would ensure small telephone companies have certainty when a decision will be made on their 
rate filings, enabling them to plan for future investments more effectively and provide better service to 
customers.   
 
For the reasons stated above the [Entity] SUPPORTS AB 1693. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Cc:  The Honorable Steven Bradford, Chair, Assembly Utilities and Commerce Committee 
 Members of the Assembly Utilities and Commerce Committee 

42



Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1717 Fact Sheet          w         2/27/2014  

AB 1717 (Perea) 
Funding Local Emergency Services  

(As introduced on February 13, 2014) 
 

SUMMARY 
AB 1717 would ensure state and local 
governments receive the necessary resources 
for E911 programs by developing a statewide 
mechanism to include prepaid wireless 
services in the already-established collection of 
fees applied to wireless communication 
services.  
 

BACKGROUND 
In California there are several state 
surcharges, taxes and fees assessed on 
telecommunication services. These are 
collected by telephone service providers from 
their service customers, and then paid to 
either the California Public Utilities 
Commission (CPUC) or the Board of 
Equalization (BOE).  
 
Existing fees and surcharges:  
§ Emergency Telephone Users Surcharge 

(E911) 
 
§ The six CPUC-mandated end-user 

surcharges: Universal Lifeline Telephone, 
Deaf and Disabled Telecommunications 
Program, California High Cost Fund-A, 
California High Cost Fund-B, California 
Teleconnect Fund, California Advanced 
Series Fund 

 
§ Local 911, access line, and utility user 

taxes 
 

§ CPUC User Fee 
 
Currently in California, there is no statewide 
mechanism to collect the same fees from 
prepaid wireless customers. As a result, state 
and local governments lack reliable means for 
ensuring collection of these revenues.  
 
For traditional, postpaid services, carriers 
collect the required fees from end-users by 
including it in their monthly bill. This 
mechanism does not work for prepaid 

consumers because they pay before they use 
any services. Roughly 70% of prepaid services 
are not purchased from the carrier; instead 
they are purchased from a retailer (e.g. Target, 
Best Buy, Wal-Mart). There is no means of 
collecting the fees from the customer after they 
leave the retailer, since there is no monthly 
bill.  
 

Postpaid Services Payment Cycle 
Monthly Bill Used to Collect 

 

 
 
 

Prepaid Services Payment Cycle 
No Collection Mechanism 

 
 

 
Prepaid services are growing rapidly in 
popularity. Out of 331 million U.S. wireless 
consumers, almost 25% use prepaid services. 
California’s share of the national wireless 
market is around 12%. By creating a 
mechanism to collect the required fees from 

43



 

Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1717 Fact Sheet          w         Page  2        w       2/27/2014  

this industry, it would help create 
predictability and enhanced revenue for state 
and local governments.   
 
Arizona, Nebraska, Utah, North Carolina and 
28 other states have adopted the point of sale 
approach for 911 fees. 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 
Well over 100 California cities and counties 
have a Utility Users Tax (UUT) on 
telecommunication services. Approximately 
80% of the UUTs are voter approved.   
 
Local Governments have seen large decreases 
in postpaid UUT revenue because of the 
consumer shift from postpaid to prepaid 
services. Many local governments depend 
heavily on UUT revenues to provide public 
services like police, fire and other emergency 
services for their residents. 
 
Examples: 
 

• The City of Sacramento has lost over $2 
million in UUT revenue.  

 
• The City of Pasadena has experienced 

over a 13% drop in UUT revenue 
($800,000 loss per year.) 

 
• The City of Culver City has experienced 

per 20% drop in UUT revenue ($600,000 
loss a year). 

 
• The City of Palm Springs will see a loss 

of over $500,000 annually in UUT 
revenue.  

 
• The City of Lynwood has seen a decline 

of over $400,000 in UUT revenue.  
   
These cities, like many other cities and 
counties, need the mechanism created by AB 
1717. This bill would allow the collection of 
UUT revenues from prepaid consumers at a 
retail location. Currently, these UUT revenues 
are not being collected and California cities 
and counties are missing out on much needed 
revenues for police, fire and other emergency 
services.    

THIS BILL 
Specifically, AB 1717 would: 
 
§ Create a uniform, statewide point of sale 

collection for prepaid services administered 
by the BOE that is uniformly administered 
and transparent to consumers, similar to 
postpaid services.  
 

§ Require that fees collected will be 
distributed to the State 911 fund, CPUC 
Public Purpose Fund and Local 
Governments.  
 

§ AB 1717 would not affect current taxes or 
fees on postpaid services. 

 
SUPPORT 

California Professional Firefighters 
CTIA-The Wireless Association (Sponsor) 
California Communications Association 
AT&T 
Boost 
Sprint 
T-Mobile 
TracFone Wireless 
US Cellular 
Verizon 
Virgin Mobile 
California’s Independent Telephone Companies 
 

OPPOSITION 
 
None on File 
 

 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 

Jonathan Arambel 
Assemblymember Henry T. Perea 
Phone: (916) 319-2031 
Fax: (916) 319-2131 
Jonathan.Arambel@Asm.Ca.Gov 
 

44

mailto:Jonathan.Arambel@Asm.Ca.Gov


 

Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1717 Fact Sheet          w         Page  3        w       2/27/2014  

 
 

SAMPLE LETTER 
 
 
 
March 27, 2014 
 
The Honorable Henry T. Perea   
Assembly Member 31st District 
State Capitol, Room 4112 
Sacramento, CA, 95814 
 
Re: Support for AB 1717 (Perea) Funding Local Emergency Services 
 
Dear Assembly Member Perea:  
 
This letter is to express support for AB 1717 – which would ensure state and local governments receive the 
necessary resources for E911 programs by developing a statewide mechanism to include prepaid services 
in the already-established collection of fees applied to wireless communication services. 
 
By creating a mechanism to collect the required fees from the prepaid wireless service, it would help create 
predictability and enhanced revenue for state and local governments. Programs and services that would 
receive additional revenue by modernizing collection of existing taxes and fees on prepaid wireless 
consumers include: state and local E911 call centers, California LifeLine, The California Teleconnect Fund, 
The Deaf and Disabled Telecommunications Program, The California High Cost Funds, The California 
Advance Services Fund, and the Public Utilities Commission Reimbursement Account.  
 
AB 300 would create a uniform, statewide point of sale collection for prepaid services administered by the 
BOE that is uniformly administered and transparent to consumers, similar to postpaid services. It also 
requires that fees collected be distributed to the State 911 fund, CPUC Public Purpose Fund and Local 
Governments. 
 
I strongly support AB 1717 (Perea,) which would modernize the collection of existing wireless taxes and fees to 
maximize revenue and help fund critical programs. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 

45



Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 2672 Fact Sheet          w         April 2, 2014 

 

AB 2672 (Perea) 
Increasing Access to Affordable Heating and Energy 

for Disadvantaged Communities  
(As introduced 02/21/14) 

 

 
SUMMARY 

AB 2672 would require the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) to establish a 
program to enable disadvantaged rural 
communities in the San Joaquin Valley to 
finance the cost of extending natural gas 
service to those communities.  
 

BACKGROUND 
Many disadvantaged communities within the 
San Joaquin Valley do not have access to 
natural gas service to serve their homes. 
Gas lines simply do not extend to these 
communities and the cost of line extensions 
are typically unaffordable.  
 
Without natural gas service, these 
communities must rely on alternative fuel 
sources such as propane, electricity and 
wood burning to heat their homes, food and 
water. These alternative sources are less 
environmentally friendly than natural gas 
and leave residents more prone to health 
and safety issues.  
 
The Valley's air quality already ranks as 
some of the worst in the nation for 
Particulate Matter (PM) 2.5. PM2.5 pollution 
is blamed for 800 premature Valley deaths 
each year. A study from CSU Fullerton 
found that roughly two-thirds of Valley 
residents are exposed to unhealthy levels of 
PM2.5 while wood smoke is one of the 
biggest direct sources of PM2.5.  
 
Natural gas is now seen as a dependable 
energy source because of its abundance and 
air quality advantages over other fuels at the 
end user point. The substantially decreased 
heating cost from natural gas would allow 
disadvantaged community residents to 
spend less of their incomes for heating and 
cooking and would alleviate, if only to a 

small extent, the poverty in which many 
families live.  

THIS BILL 
Specifically, AB 2672 would: 

• Require the CPUC to establish a 
program to enable disadvantaged 
rural communities in the San 
Joaquin valley to finance the cost of 
natural gas line extensions. 

• Require the CPUC to direct a gas 
corporation to identify communities 
who do not have natural gas service 
and assess the cost of line extensions 
to those communities. 

• Require the CPUC to identify potential 
sources of funds for the program. 

 

SUPPORT 
• Self Help Enterprises (Sponsor) 
• Leadership Counsel for Justice and 

Accountability (Sponsor) 
• Allensworth Community Services 

District 
• Allensworth Elementary School 
• Center on Race, Poverty and The 

Environment 
• Fairmead Community and Friends  
• Monterey Park Tract Services District 
• West Goshen Mutual Water Company 
 

OPPOSITION 
• None on file 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Evan Corder 
Assemblymember Henry T. Perea 
Phone: (916) 319-2031 
Fax: (916) 319-2131 
Evan.corder@asm.ca.gov 

46

mailto:Evan.corder@asm.ca.gov


 

Office of Assemblymember Henry T. Perea            w          AB 1309 Fact Sheet          w         Page 2 
 

 
 

47



    
 
 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 21, 2014

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: City of Fresno Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan 

RECOMMENDATION   
 
Council provide input and direction to the Mayor regarding the City of Fresno’s request to amend the Measure C 
Expenditure Plan to provide additional funding for street maintenance projects. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
In 1986, the voters of Fresno County passed Measure C providing for a ½ cent sales tax increase to fund 
transportation related projects over a twenty year period. In 2006, the voters extended Measure C for an additional 
twenty years which included funding for New Technology and Rail Consolidation. Measure C has collected $8.0 
million in the New Technology fund and $20.8 million in the Rail Consolidation fund. These dollars have not been 
expended. Approximately $92 million is expected to be generated in these two funds over the remaining 12 years of 
the Measure C program. The City of Fresno recently requested that the Measure C Expenditure Plan be amended to 
re-allocate these dollars to fund street maintenance projects. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
On March 20, the COG Policy Board considered Fresno’s request to amend the Measure C Expenditure Plan. The 
League of Woman Voters and the Bicycle Club expressed their opposition to the proposed amendment. These 
groups were instrumental in helping the Measure C extension pass by modifying the expenditure plan to include the 
New Technology and Rail Consolidation funds. These new funds are aimed at investing in alternative modes of 
transportation, improving congestion and air quality. They pointed out that it was because of transit and air quality 
programs that the voters ultimately passed the extension of Measure C in 2006. Moreover, several mayors voiced 
their concerns with the proposed amendment. They felt that the voters had given direction when the measure was 
passed and that any amendments might jeopardize the public confidence in the Measure C program. 
 
DISCUSSION   
 
The Fresno COG Policy Board considered the request from the City of Fresno to amend the Measure C Expenditure 
Plan at their March 20, 2014 meeting. The Policy Board took no formal position on the request, but directed COG 
staff to continue the item for 60 days to give the members a chance to take this item to their respective councils for 
input and direction. The input from member agencies will be presented to the Policy Board in June. 
 

48



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan 
 
The City of Fresno is proposing that the Measure C Expenditure Plan be amended to redirect funds set-aside for 
New Technology and Rail Consolidation funds and into a street maintenance fund that would be allocated to 
member agencies based on the same formula currently used for allocation of Measure C funds (population + road 
miles + a guaranteed annual minimum of $100,000 for each of our 16 member agencies). 
 
Fresno Council of Governments (COG) staff estimates that approximately $92 million would be available to member 
agencies for street maintenance projects if the amendment was approved. Included as Attachment ‘A’ is a 
spreadsheet that summarizes the amount of funding that would go to each of Fresno COG’s member agency for 
street maintenance over the remaining life of the Measure C program (approximately 12 years). Kerman would 
expect to receive an additional $1.1 million. 
 
The New Technology fund was created to encourage the use of new modes of transportation and supporting 
infrastructure (e.g., bus rapid transit, personal rapid transit, electrical charging stations, etc.). Approximately $30.4 
million is projected to be collected for New Technology over the life of the Measure C program. The Measure C 
program does allow for some flexibility to re-direct these funds if during the biennial update (2016) of the 
Expenditure Plan the feasibility and likelihood of implementing New Technology projects is not eminent, or if 
construction is not eminent within 15 years the funds could be allocated where the greatest need exists without voter 
approval. 
 
The Rail Consolidation fund was created to provide congestion relief and improve air quality by consolidating 
existing rail in urban Fresno. Rail consolidation has been a goal for some time; however, the feasibility and 
willingness of the major rail lines to work together to achieve this goal has been elusive. Approximately $86.8 million 
is projected to be collected for Rail Consolidation over the life of the Measure C program. Of this amount, $25.0 
million is pledged to High Speed Rail. The Measure C program provides for these funds to revert to grade 
separation projects if rail consolidation in not programmed and if construction is not eminent within 15 years.  
 
The voters of Fresno County would need to approve any amendment to the Measure C Expenditure Plan. In order to 
determine if there might be public support for such an idea a public poll is recommended as a first step to gauge the 
public’s support for such an amendment. Street maintenance was cited as a high priority when the initial polling was 
conducted for the 2006 extension, and early this year when polling was done for the preparation of the Regional 
Transportation Plan. 
 
COG staff is asking member agencies to provide feedback on the request to amend the Measure C Expenditure 
Plan. At this point, the goal is to determine if cities support Fresno’s request and, if so, COG staff can proceed with 
conducting a public poll to determine if there is voter support. Again, the COG Policy Board will consider Fresno’s 
request at their June meeting. 
 
The Council may consider taking the following position: 
 

1. Support conducting a poll to gauge the public’s support for amending the Measure C Expenditure Plan 
as proposed by the City of Fresno. 

2. Oppose any amendments to the Measure C Expenditure Plan at this time. 
3. Support waiting until the biennial Expenditure Plan update in 2016 to consider re-directing New 

Technology funds to street maintenance projects or other projects where the greatest need exists 
without voter approval. 

 
 
 

49



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
 
Kerman would expect to receive an additional $1.1 million over the next 12 years for street maintenance if the 
amendment were approved by the voters. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING   
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A. Measure C Funding Apportionment Calculations 

50



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

       
FRESNO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

MEASURE C FUND APPORTIONMENT CALCULATIONS 
Repair & Maintenance Initiative 

Based on current 20 projection of Sales Tax Revenue 
       
 20 Year Projection (2006 – 2026)    
       

New Technology $30,397,117       
 

Rail Consolidation 
 

$86,848,909  
     

        
Subtotal 

 
$117,246,026 

     
     

 
HSR Commitment 

 
($25,000,000) 

     
     

 
Net 20 Year Funds 

 
$92,246,026  

     
     

  
 

2013 
Population 

 
2011 
Road 
Miles 

    
  

Pro Rata 
Population 

Pro Rata 
Road 
Miles 

 
 

Combined 

 
 

Formula Above 
 

 (75%) (25%) Percent Percent Percentage Minimum 
 Clovis 99,983  348.7  7.88% 1.39% 9.27% $8,550,837  

Coalinga 16,729  38.8  1.32% 0.16% 1.47% 1,358,570  
Firebaugh 7,777  22.3  0.61% 0.09% 0.70% 647,331  
Fowler 5,801  41.6  0.46% 0.17% 0.62% 574,905  
Fresno 508,453  1,752.3  40.05% 7.01% 47.06% 43,407,457  
Huron 6,790  14.0  0.53% 0.06% 0.59% 545,075  
Kerman 14,225  26.5  1.12% 0.11% 1.23% 1,131,298  
Kingsburg 11,590  45.9  0.91% 0.18% 1.10% 1,011,542  
Mendota 11,178  54.6  0.88% 0.22% 1.10% 1,013,733  
Orange Cove 9,353  26.3  0.74% 0.11% 0.84% 776,634  
Parlier 14,873  30.0  1.17% 0.12% 1.29% 1,191,476  
Reedley 24,965  68.1  1.97% 0.27% 2.24% 2,065,145  
San Joaquin 4,029  14.3  0.32% 0.06% 0.37% 345,382  
Sanger 24,703  69.9  1.95% 0.28% 2.23% 2,052,858  
Selma 23,799  77.0  1.87% 0.31% 2.18% 2,013,103  
County of Fresno  167,918  3,622.0  13.23% 14.48% 27.71% 25,560,681  

TOTAL 952,166  6,252.3  75.00% 25.00% 100.00% 92,246,027  
 

51


	Agenda
	Minutes
	May 7, 2014

	Payroll
	April 13-26, 2014
	April 27-May10, 2014

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Approving Agreement Between the City of Kerman and the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Serving Fresno County
	Staff Report - EDC Agreement 2014

	Approval of Audit Engagement Letter with Bryant L. Jolley for the Fiscal Year 2013/14
	Staff Report - Audit Engagement Letter

	Monthly Investment Report for Month Ending April 30, 2014
	Report

	Letter Requesting Support from Kerman Heat Softball Association
	Letter of Support - Kerman Heat Softball Association

	Request for Letter of Support of AB 1693 (Perea) Reliable Tele-Co Service for Rural Communities
	AB 1693 Fact Sheet

	Request for Letter of Support of AB 1717 (Perea) Funding Local Emergency Services
	AB 1717 Fact Sheet 

	Request for Letter of Support of AB 2672 (Perea) Increasing Access to Affordable Heating and Energy for Disadvantaged Communities
	AB 2672 Fact Sheet

	City of Fresno Request to Amend Measure C Expenditure Plan
	Staff Report - Measure C Amendment Request


